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Court File No. NY21513/97

SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

(Divisional Court)

In The Matter of a Small Claims Action 

Heard November 20th –27th, 2000

B E T W E E N:

JOSEPH BATTAGLIA

(Appellant)

         and

IMPERIAL TOBACCO LIMITED

(Respondent)

FACTUM OF THE APPELLANT JOSEPH BATTAGLIA


This is an appeal by Joseph Battaglia, Plaintiff, from a judgment dated June 5TH, 2001, of the Honorable Justice Pamela Thomson, presiding as a Local Judge of the Superior Court of Justice over a small claims ‘tort’ action against Imperial Tobacco Limited.   Madame Justice Thomson dismissed Battaglia’s claim primarily for the following reasons:



    “A SAFE CIGARETTE IS AN OXYMORON”



  


J.R.     Page 2     Line 1

“Common sense is common sense and I guess that is what this all comes  down to.  I must dismiss the claim based on the facts peculiar to the Plantiff”





J.R.     Page 38     Lines 15 - 18
“The Plaintiff is the only one who has control over whether he will smoke at all, how much he will smoke, what brand, or the numbers he will smoke, and how he will smoke.  Only he can decide to overcome his dependency and clean out his body”.





    J.R.  Page 37   Line 13 - 18

“The misrepresentation were relied on but not to the detriment of the Plaintiff”.





      J.R.  Page 37   Line 2 - 28                                                  
This appeal is based on the premise that the depth of the evidence within the more than 700 pages of trial transcripts was of such a complex nature that no one Justice could possibly absorb and assess the evidence without aid of these transcripts.


The Transcripts reveal a treasure chest of astonishing admissions by executives of Imperial Tobacco who, for the first time, were obliged to appear in a Canadian Court of Law and, provide under oath, answers never before expressed.


The Canadian Court system owes it to Battaglia, and others like him, to make a complete review of the trial proceedings, to analyze the claims validity, and compare that to the evidence presented at trial. 


The  answer as to why there are still millions of Canadians  addicted to smoking rests within these trial transcripts.  They tell us that Imperial Tobacco continues exhibiting gross indifference and a conscious disregard to the value of human life.  Battaglia’s life only being one of them.
THE CLAIM


Battaglia’s claim is founded on a decision he made in 1994.  That was “to quit smoking cigarettes” and Imperial Tobacco’s efforts to prevent Battaglia from accomplishing  that.

          In the mid 1980’s, Battaglia had quit smoking for about two years, with the aid of a doctor’s prescribed Nicotine Patch.  A point of interest.  (In the 1980’s, the Food and Drug Administration considered nicotine to be an addictive drug requiring a doctor’s prescription.)   What happened to change that?  

       In the late 1980’s, Battaglia found himself under financial, personal, and business pressures which eventually led Battaglia back to smoking.  Battaglia was facing a break-up of a 28 year old marriage, personal and business bankruptcy, and had the added pressure of starting a new business.  All of this during the recession years of 1989 to 1994, when people of the rank of the Reichmans were involved in catastrophic business failures.  (Mentioned not for sympathy but as to Battaglia’s state of mind.)





Battaglia’s Evidence    Book B


In 1994, with an improved attitude of mind, and with the experience of quitting once before, Battaglia proceeded with a plan to once again quit smoking cigarettes.


Both Dr. Massey for the Defendant, and Dr. Graham for the Plaintiff suggested a smoker must first have a plan if he expects to have any chance of quitting.





Evidence,  Massey and Graham





  
  Book  B & D

Battaglia did have a plan!  The plan was to seek out a low tar and nicotine cigarette that provided acceptable  taste.  Hopefully leading to weaning himself off cigarettes completely.





Battaglia’s  Evidence    Boook B

SLAVE SMOKING MACHINES


What Battaglia didn’t know then but the transcripts now reveal, was that Imperial had been conducting research on human smoking behavior in particular toward the puff energy, length of that puff, where and how the hands hold a cigarette, where and how the mouth holds a cigarette, and so on.  It was of such a scientific success that Imperial was able to duplicate any human smoking habit by feeding this human behaviour information to a computer which duplicated that smokers habits on what has been labeled slave smoking machines.  Health Canada doesn’t have these!  They are owned, conceived and controlled by Imperial Tobacco.  Imperial shared their findings with no one.  (“Voluntary Code” not withstanding).




Collishaw’s Evidence   Book A   Line 2 – 28

Definition of Voluntary Code:  The Voluntary Code is the brainchild of the (C.T.M.C.) The Canadian Tobacco Manufacturers Council (a conspiratorial group of three Canadian Manufacturers).  The C.T.M.C. created the pre-emptive “Voluntary Code” which was designed to cut off harmful government legislation.  The code was used, abused, and manipulated according to C.T.M.C. whims.  The proof hereof is forthcoming.


In the late 1980’s, Imperial no longer needed humans for testing purposes.  Now they could conduct their experiments and research in perfect corporate secrecy.  Only those behind closed doors knew what as going on.  What was going on?   Imperial was researching “elasticity” and the effects of “compensation”.

            What is “Elasticity”?  An engineered cigarette purposely designed to deliver more nicotine than advertised, or, in the case of Matinee King Size and l00’s Slims, the nicotine reading is .04 under normal sucking.  If you double the sucking action and the reading goes to .08, the product is not elastic.  If the number increases beyond .08, the product is elastic.  Matinee King Size Extra Mild and Slim 100’s stretches to an average of 2.5 (6 times more).  The printing of these numbers appear on cigarette packages that are for sale today.





Book A     Page 59       Lines   6 - 26

Book D     Page 110     Lines 24 – 31


What is “Compensation”?  A physical action by the smoker controlling their nicotine intake.  (A sub-conscious deeper sucking and smoke inhalation.)





Book     D     Page 111     Lines 4 – 9

  
Success in this area would provide a smoker with an option instead of the choice between quitting and smoking.  Imperial would offer the smoker the illusion of a midway point that does little or nothing to lower nicotine intake and in the end result in an even greater health risk because of the increased amount of smoke inhaled, and, the further postponement of smoking cessation.


WHAT ELSE WAS IMPERIAL DOING?  Imperial was measuring tar and nicotine contents of their cigarettes and those numbers were provided to Health Canada who then placed those numbers on the side of cigarette packages.  Those numbers for light cigarettes were fraudulent and far from the real truth.  Imperial designed Matinee King Size and Slim 100’s to take advantage of the consumers smoking habits as discovered in their human research programs.

THE DECEIT

Both these cigarette brands have micro holes 12mm from the end of the filter.  Imperials human study told them a smokers lips holds the filter in the 12mm area.

Imperials I.S.O.  smoking machines only allowed the cigarette to be inserted to a maximum of 5 mm.


Imperial had control of literally every aspect and look what they did with it.  Imperial tricked their self invented smoking machines.  Imperial knew that the micro holes would be left naked to the open air.  This positioning guarantees the lowest reading possible.  In order to duplicate this reading, a smoker would have to not inhale any smoke, or the smoker  must insert the smoking end into their mouth less than 12 mm from the filter end.  This is virtually impossible as no one smokes a cigarette in this manner.


Imperial ignored the meaning of their Voluntary Code and kept this information secret.  Imperial became the master of smokers trying to quit.  Imperial became the responsible party for the lack of success in Battaglia’s efforts to quit.

Such a frightfully simple formula, hardly the fruit of a great scientific discovery.  More an idea from a junior executive perhaps who was at the 1984 structured creativity      conference in  England where all morals were abandoned.  This junior executive was to become one of the many Presidents of Imperial Tobacco Limited.




Evidence  Book D     Page 111     Lines 26 - 29


While on the topic of Presidents, the transcript reveals an inordinate number of top executives either retiring or being promoted within relevantly short periods of time for such important positions.  One explanation for this is when it comes down to who is personally responsible for the deceit and ultimate health consequences, the chain of command is broken up so often, an investigation as to who is responsible becomes too complicated.  This is the executives insurance  protection.  The reward is short term Presidency  or Marketing Directorship, along with wonderful pensions, and stock options.  Obviously there are not many  “Dr Wigands” but there are, it seems, a boat load of “Bexons”.  (Dr. Wigand being the ’60 Minute Insider who exposed Brown & Williams research into nicotine manipulation.) 





Battaglia’s Evidence     Book B


Battaglia, up to an aborted 1997 C.B.S. 60 Minutes program,  accepted full responsibility for his smoking addiction.  Battaglia could not understand why it was so hard to quit this time but blamed his own personal weakness for his failure.




   Battaglia’s  Evidence     Book B     Page 30

NO ‘JOHNNY COME LATELY’ 

The Honourable Justice Thomson’s reasons for judgment were based (in many ways) on the knowledge and evidence Battaglia expressed at trial in the year 2000.  In effect Battaglia is being prejudiced for providing evidence that proves his case.  Respectfully the Learned Trial Judge errored  in not recognizing this difference.  Battaglia is not a “Johnny Come Lately”.  Battaglia’s claim is born from a decision he made in 1994.  The decision  was to quit smoking.  In 1994, the Tobacco Industry party line was to deny everything.  No concessions!  Battaglia was a supporter of the tobacco industry in 1994, in particular Matinee King Size and 100’s Slims Extra Mild.





Book B     Page 30     Lines 15 – 30


Eventually, the original 60 Minute Program did air.  Dr. Wigand broke confidentiality agreement.  Dr. Wigand’s conscious told him his silence was killing humans, not just mice.





Battaglia’s Evidence   Book B & C


This new  information hit Battaglia like a lightening bolt and made him realize that his unsuccessful attempts to quit may not be his fault.  It was from this point that Battaglia became angry.  Battaglia was violated!  Battaglia began to obtain the knowledge that the Trial Judge is now accussing Battaglia  of having before 1994, the year Battaglia made the decision to quit.   

Reason:     “Battaglia knew that cigarettes were not good for him and that he 

         
        knew if he covered the holes with his lips he would get more taste”

Answer:       No!  Imperial knew this.  Battaglia did not know until late 1997.




J.R.    Page  22        Lines 10-25

Reason:       “Battaglia had figured things out with respect to the ventilation holes.

Answer:       This discovery by Battaglia should be applauded.  A defense      

witness who once headed Health Canada, was unaware Matinee even had         holes in the filter. 





Last 2 lines of 2nd paragraph  Page 27  





     J.R.   Page 22  last 2 lines

Reason:      “We have a package of cigarettes that not only says it is  

                    hazardous to your health, but shows pictures of all kinds of ugly things”.

Answer:      These picture warnings were placed on the package in the year 


        2000, Battaglia could not have seen them in 1994 and 1997. 

Justice Thomson concluded that: 

Reason:     “if Battaglia had all the info, it would not have made a whit

           of difference to him.” 

                           

 J.R.   Page 29    Lines 20-22

Answer:       The conclusion may be correct only if Battaglia knew what 

Imperial was doing and was accepting evidence to the contrary.  Battaglia did not have the knowledge in 1994 that would have allowed him a fair chance of quitting.

 


J.R.     Page 36     Lines 21 – 25

Reason:      “The last element is whether there was a detriment to the Plaintiff from this


        misrepresentation of the concept and word ‘average’ by non-feasance as


        numbers were being measured by the same criteria”.





J.R.     Page 36     Lines 5 – 10

Reason:
“The use of the word ‘average’ without describing what it is, etc.





J.R.     Page 36     3rd paragraph

Reason:
“It, (the numbers), told him he was not getting as much as Players



Filter Tip,  etc.





J.R.      Page 35     Last paragraph

Reason:
“He wanted this cigarette to wean him from nicotine.  That cannot



happen.  He is probably getting less than most.”





J.R.     Page 36     Lines 27 - 28


In answer to the word ‘average’ and its meaning in the context of this claim.  There is no average.  If a cigarette has a low of .4 and a high of 26 (as with Matinee King Size, 100 mm), the average is 1.5 not .4 as Imperial is leading us to believe.  The word ‘average’ has never appeared on the side of cigarette packages.  Imperial only provided the lowest number.  


As to Dr. Massey and his opinion that “on the balance of probabilities, Battaglia was getting less than the averages on the package.”





J.R.     Page  30,    2nd paragraph


This statement of statistical evidence by Dr. Massey is breathtaking, an affront to common sense and clearly exhibits Imperial’s psychopathic indifference toward its customers.  


As previously mentioned, the record shows that the micro holes were and are still  placed exactly where Imperial research told them a smokers lips would cover the holes.  Imperial’s smoking machines do not cover the holes when measuring tar and nicotine content.  The machine reading of course is diluted and therefore phony.  Realistic smoking (lips covering micro holes) measure as much as 6 to 7 times more than I.S.O. machine test.  How in heaven’s name can Battaglia be getting less?


Judge Thomson believes  Battaglia “was not getting as much as Players filter tip”.  A review of the chart listing various cigarette brands and their tar and nicotine content.  Players Regular Filter (the number 1 seller in Canada) has a tar and nicotine rating of 13 and 1.2 respectively.  


Matinee King Size Extra Mild has a tar and nicotine rating (under same smoking condition as players) of 24 and 2.4.


The difference between the two brands is the opposite of Judge Thomson’s conclusion.  Matinee is twice the power of Players filter.  Players is a cigarette brand reputed to be among the strongest cigarettes on the market, Matinee is  perceived to be among the lightest.  This is part of the deceit Battaglia is attacking.  This is an indication that elasticity and compensation are at work.  Justice Thomson is being misinformed, and appears to be buying it. 

‘FORGIVE ME FATHER FOR I HAVE SINNED’


The most startling reason for judgment Judge Thomson gave  is her absolution of Imperials past sins.            

“The fact that the industry and the defendant were not forthcoming with what they knew in another time is balanced by their being forthcoming whenever they were asked a question at this trial”.




Evidence     J.R.     Page 29     Lines 23 – 26




Evidence     J.R.     Page 10     Lines 1  -  15


It is not a stretch to come away with the impression that Justice Thomson was successfully wooed by Imperials court decorum and bought the patronizing pleas  by Imperial to forgive them for their past sins because look at what we are doing now.  When in actual fact, they are no better corporate citizens today then yesterday  On second thought, Imperial is worse now then at any point in their existence.  They have the knowledge to make a safe cigarette except they say “it would not sell”.  What’s wrong with that?

THE STING


During Battaglia’s quitting process and while still smoking Matinee Extra Mild, King Size, Battaglia discovered Matinee 100 Slims, Extra Mild on the retailers shelves.  An examination of the numbers on the side of the package revealed the same numbers as the King Size Extra Mild.  (4 and .4) tar and nicotine respectively.


Battaglia switched to Matinee Slim 100’s.  They were even better.  Equal satisfaction and not only was the cigarette 15 mm longer, but also lasted longer.  A better deal all around.  The best part was the tar and nicotine readings were  the same as Matinee King Size Extra Mild.  Battaglia thought he had found the perfect cigarette.  A low health risk, possibly another opportunity  to wean himself off cigarettes completely.  Battaglia even promoted this cigarette to his fellow smokers.





Book B     Page 30     Lines 15 - 30


Still, Battaglia could not quit.  He still blamed no one else but himself.




      Battaglia’s Evidence     Book B     page 30


However, some time between the years 1997 and 2000 (when this lawsuit was halfway through the court system), Battaglia noticed a change in the numbers on the side of the package of Matinee Slim 100s.  The tar number was the same, but the nicotine reading increased to .5 from .4.  Matinee Slim 100’s Extra Mild, the cigarette Battaglia had chosen to help wean him off cigarettes completely was now at least 20% more addictive than his 1994 original choice of Matinee King Size Extra Mild.  This secret increase of the nicotine readings, plus elasticity and compensation explains why Battaglia was having such a hard time quitting. 

 HOW CAN BATTAGLIA BE BLAMED FOR HIS SMOKING ADDICTION WHEN HE WAS BEING INJECTED WITH NICOTINE WHILE HE SLEPT?  Would authorities allow the beer industry such latitude and consumer deception.  Suppose Battaglia was a person who liked the taste of beer, and a regular weekly basis he visits his favorite bar and religiously orders six Lite beers over the time he was there.  ‘Battaglia’ being a responsible drinker. 

 The label reads 1% alcohol content per bottle and six bottles would leave ‘Battaglia’ far from intoxicated.  However, at a future visit unknown to Battaglia and without notice or warning, the alcohol content is increased to 4% because the beer company’s studies have told them consumers prefer the taste of a regular beer over Lite beer.  So come Friday night, he orders his regular six lite beers, but instead of total alcohol consumption being six, the total alcohol consumed equals 24.  Six times as much.  The responsible beer drinker gets in his car, gets into an accident and kills himself.  That is a winnable suit against the beer company in any court of law.  The difference here is that alcohol contents on labels, with light being the descriptive word is regulated.  Not so with the tobacco industry.  In effect, Imperial has used a regulatory phrase for one product and used the consumer understanding of that word to conceal the deceit within its own products.  

This method of marketing a consumer product in the manner Imperial promoted Matinee Extra Mild would be considered brilliant if the product didn’t kill its customers.  But cigarettes do kill and Imperial now concedes that.

IMPERIAL’S ATTITUDE TOWARDS 45,000 ANNUAL DEATHS

Imperial has recently declared a new position on cigarettes and disease.  Mr. Bob Bexon, President as of 2002 appearing before a government hearing agrees that cigarette smoke does cause death related diseases.  It’s just that they do not know who they are.  Some how this ignorance is their licence to justify their actions.

How is this attitude any different than four or five of Imperial’s executives standing in a circle, in the middle of Toronto’s Yonge and Bloor Streets intersection, holding loaded machine guns, with a blind fold over their eyes, and  fire bullets indiscriminately into the crowds of people walking on the sidewalk.  Their defense is based on the fact they didn’t know who they were killing,  “besides, not everyone in the line of fire were killed.  Many more lived then died”.  This is Imperial’s attitude toward the 45,000 Canadians who die a year from smoking related disease.

WHEN YOU ARE RIGHT, THE CASE GETS BETTER

So far in the factum  I have attempted to answer all of Madam Justice Thomson’s relevant reasons for dismissing my claim.  From this point on, I wish to present Madam Justice Thomson’s many positive comments in my favour.  It is respectfully submitted that these reasons carry much heavier weight than her reasons for dismissal.

MADAME JUSTICE THOMSON’S REASONS IN FAVOUR OF BATTAGLIA


“They (Imperial), do recognize though, that their customers want to be weaned from nicotine”.





J.R.     Page 6       Lines 15-18


“The defendant knew from the 1980’s and well before 1988 when the Tobacco Control Act came in, that the machine numbers were less than human numbers because of smoker behavior and because of the design or construction of extra mild cigarettes”





J.R.
Page 6       Lines  23-27


“They (Imperial) knew but they did not allow the study which dealt with those studies to be published.”





J.R.
Page 7        Lines 22-24

“Of course, they (Imperial) probably realized that by not so doing, more people will obstruct the ventilation holes”.





J.R.      Page 8       Lines 5 - 7   


“They (Imperial) spent less time looking at the biological effects of smoking, probably because they did not like the answers”





J.R.       Page 8       Lines 12-15


“They (Imperial) started in 1964 with a Voluntary Code.  It is clear from the internal documents filed that this was operating under the premise that the best defense is offence”.





J.R.       Page  8      Lines 17-21        


“Matinee Extra Mild was designed to keep smokers smoking.”  Justice Thomson states “that is a long way from earlier befuddling comments of officials of the defendant.  They have come a long way”.





J.R.      Page10           Lines 12-14


Justice Thomson disappoints when she applauds Imperial for admitting to “designing cigarettes that keep smokers smoking.  This is the essence of Battaglia’s claim.  Somehow,  Imperial has taken Justice Thomson’s “eye off the ball”.   Battaglia’s point must not be lost!


Justice Thomson further comments that Canadian cigarettes are better than American cigarettes because they have no additives and use Canadian tobacco.





J.R.       Page 10       Lines 23-35


There is no proof within the transcript that Canadian cigarettes do not have additives.  There are no facts in evidence to substantiate this conclusion.


On the subject of Canadian tobacco.  If more proof is needed that Imperial is not interested in the quality of the tobacco used to fill its cigarettes, simply duplicate the experiment Battaglia conducted during direct examination.  What is evident is the difference between roll your own tobacco and what is passed off as tobacco in Matinee Extra Mild and Slims 100’s.

(Battaglia to show difference of two tobaccos.)

Imperial’s charter to operate in Canada is to sell cigarettes.  The dictionary definition of a cigarette is a paper cylinder filled with fine cut tobacco for smoking purposes.  An examination of the tobacco in Matinee Extra Mild King Size and 100’s Slims reveals  ends, roots, twigs, that which, Battaglia claims was thrown out in the 1950’s and 1960’s.  Rothmans did not save and use this junk as reconstituted tobacco.  Where did the best tobacco that money can buy go?





Battaglia’s  Evidence   Book  B & C

 

Imperial on this basis alone should have their charter rescinded until they produce a cigarette that is not addictive, Imperial can’t be both Imperial Tobacco and Imperial Chemicals.  There is no doubt that Imperial is no longer in the tobacco business.  The name tobacco was hardly mentioned during the trial.  No tobacco expert was called to provide evidence to the contrary.  Rather, we had one of more than 400 scientists and chemists (available to the defendant) provide self-serving evidence, designed to camoflage the reality of their deceit.


 BATTAGLIA IS AN EXPERT ON TOBACCO QUALITY!  In support of such a claim, Battaglia’s experience as office boy, a young salesman, and senior management, shows Battaglia participated in many studies of rating competitors tobacco to that of his employer (Rothmans) at the time.





Battaglia’s Evidence     Book  B & C

Reason:   “The defendant knew that people perceived lower tar and nicotine cigarettes to

     be healthier and they pandered to it”.





J.R.     Page 11     Lines 3 - 6

Reason:   “In 1976, they (Imperial) do not want to lower the nicotine too much or


     Consumers will not want to smoke”.   
       





J.R.    Page 13      Lines 12-14


Reason:  “There is an acceptance in 1976 that nicotine is the hook to continued smoking.”





J.R.     page 13

Reason:  “In 1989, draft minutes show the defendant’s parent stopped research on the   

                mechanisms of smoking-associated diseases.





(Exhibit 1   Table 4,   page 51)





J.R.   Page 13       Lines 22 - 24

After reading these reasons, how did Battaglia lose this case?

THE CROSS ROAD
1989 appears to be the cross road year.  Does Imperial concentrate on developing a health cigarette or do they market their products according to consumers smoking habits and perceptions?   Imperial knew, as the world knows, that cigarettes kill 45,000 Canadian per year.  Battaglia claims Imperial took the deceitful road.





J.R.     Page 14          Lines 6 - 9

Reason:   “The existence of the machine is disclaimed in 1995.  





Exhibit 1      Table 16      Page  176





J.R.     Page 14      Lines 13 – 15

Comment:   For six years, Imperial held private the existence of these computerized slave smoking machines.  This six year period covers the year 1994 in which Battaglia made his decision to quit.  Coincidence  is possible, but not likely.  At least not according to Imperials past performance chart.


Reason:   “While nicotine seems to be the dependence and taste, trigger, it also has harmful chemical side effects”.





J.R.     Page 14     Lines 27 - 28


Reason:   Nicotine, no mater how little, acts within the body and mind to create dependency.  As Battaglia claims, “nicotine is the hook!”






J.R.
Page 37     Lines 21 - 23

Reason:   “In this case the ventilation holes can be seen.





J.R.       Page 15        Lines 3 – 4


Comment:    Respectfully, they are not at all easy to see.  Battaglia did not realize the holes were there until after 1997.

Comment:
Justice Thomson gives too much credit to the smoking machines.





“World-recognized standard”





  Page  15        Lines 20 - 21

Comment:   These machines were created by Imperial and exclusive to Imperial’s purposes and marketing goals.  For six years they kept this secret.  (What about the Voluntary Code”?))

Reason:   “Some people block some holes some of the time”.





J.R.   Page 16        Lines 24-25


Comment:   Respectfully not close to the facts.  Imperial made sure they hit the 

bulls eye.  The holes are at 12mm from mouth end.  Research shows cigarettes inserted into smoking machine to 5mm.  Research shows consumers lips close over filter at 11.5mm.   Cigarette test results not realistic.  Cigarette machine never covers holes while puffing.





Book   A     pages 46 to 52     Lines  1 - 18 

Reason:   Imperial is as deceitful as they come in the most simplest of forms.  Almost embarrassing as to how long they have gotten away with this.

Reason:    “You have to work pretty hard to cover 100% of the holes with your lips”.





Page 17     Lines 27 - 28

Comment:   As previously mentioned, a smokers lips cover the filter at 11.5mm.  The holes are at 12mm.  Add deep lung inhalation and the cigarette is

 drawn even further past the lips and into the mouth cavity.  Not hard 

 at all to cover the holes.  





Battaglia’s Evidence   Book B &  C

Reason:   “It still is a mystery, why the defendant chose 12 mm.





J.R.   pg. 17              Line 11-12

Comment:    Had Justice Thomson realized why the vent holes were at 12 mm, she would have recognized Battaglia’s allegations and found Imperial accountable.

Reason:    “The 1976 code also provided that manufactures put the average

Tar and nicotine on packages and in the adds”.




J.R.     Page 9      Lines 14 – 16

Comment:    As previously mentioned, the number 4 on the side of Matinee Extra Mild packages are the lowest of all possible ratings, not the average.  

WHAT IMPERIAL SAYS IN YEAR 2000

“People who choose to smoke cigarettes will cause fatal lung disease in some

people.”   And, “we would agree that cigarette smoking causes disease in some people and the entire world knows there are real risks associated with cigarette smoking and I know there are risks.  I know there are significant risks”.


This evidence by the current President of Imperial, Mr. Bexon after 50 years of deny, deny, deny.





J.R.     Page 10     Lines 6 – 12


This statement goes a long way in proving Battaglia’s claim.  If Imperial believed that their product kills (its customers), what justification does Imperial have for designing cigarettes to specifically target smokers who want to quit.  This surely places Battaglia and others like him in direct line of being one of Imperial’s victims.

THE ‘ELASTIC’ COVER UP

Why Battaglia could not quit after he switched to Matinee Extra Mild!  That is if Matinee Extra Mild is an elastic cigarette.

IS MATINEE EXTRA MILD ELASTIC?


Mr. Collishaw (the first Plaintiff witness) and former employee of Health Canada, presently Research Director for Physician for a Smoke Free Canada, said at the trial that studies presently underway are not yet complete (as of date of trial, November 20TH)   Therefore Collishaw has no conclusive evidence to say Imperial is selling elastic cigarettes.  Mr. Brown (former Imperial President) had the advantage of hearing this before he testified.


Mr. Barnes, (plaintiff’s lawyer), asked Mr. Brown “with respect to elasticity, first of all I want to ask you, has Imperial purposely designed products that are elastic?”




Book C & D     pages 8 & 9     Last and first 2 lines

Brown’s Answer:


“No, we have not, certainly not for marketing purposes.





Book C & D     Page 9      Lines 3 – 4                 


Before going on with further evidence about elasticity, let us examine this question and answer, in greater detail.   It is safe to assume that Mr. Brown and Mr. Barnes are worthy of their positions and know their business as well as any.  It can also be assumed that a pre-trial prep meeting was held between the two to discuss relevant questions likely to be asked of Mr. Brown.   Both men would have been aware that part of Battaglia’s claim of deceit involved the practice of marketing elastic cigarettes in Canada.  It can be assumed they discussed elasticity in detail and the words each would use in asking the question and giving the answer.  So let us examine the question and answer.




Book  D       Page 8         Lines  27 - 30




Book  D       Page  9         Lines   1 - 2

Q:
“First of all I want to ask you, has Imperial purposely designed products that are elastic?”

A:
“No, we have not, certainly not for marketing purposes”.

This is double talk by both parties!.


Why the word  ‘purposely’ in the question?  An honest direct and positive question does not need the word ‘purposely’.  It allows for a gray answer not unlike President Clinton:   “It depends on what the word “is” means.


The questions interpretation is more likely deciphered as follows:

Q:
“Mr. Brown you have admitted conducting research into the effects of elasticity.  Did your company (of which you were president) ever market elastic cigarettes in Canada?”

A:
“Yes we did.  But not on purpose.  We never anticipated the result our research achieved.  Elasticity was not intentional.  Not to the degree it worked out.  It is also true that we kept this information to ourselves.  We did not inform Health Canada despite The Canadian Tobacco Manufactures Council and its Voluntary Code.

What does “No, we have not, certainly not for marketing purposes”, mean?  The most direct and honest answer of telling the truth would be:  

“No we have not”.  Why the qualifier, “certainly not for marketing purposes”?

This manner of speaking does not have the ring of truth.  It ensures a legal out to a perjury charge in the event this fraud is prosecuted. 


If further proof is needed of an elastic cover-up, let us turn to the evidence of Mr. Massey, Imperial’s scientist.  He was asked by Mr. Barnes  (Book D,  pg. 111    Line 9-10.

Q:
“And, has Imperial ever sold cigarettes to consumers that were designed deliberately to be elastic?”

A:
“No, it has not”.


Two words:  Purposely and Deliberately, and the manner of their use leaves real doubt about the honesty of their answers!


This evidence carried heavy weight with Justice Thomson.  She believed Imperial when they said they were not marketing elastic cigarettes and made comment to that in her reasons for Judgment.


It certainly appears as if Imperial was using  trick words during the trial to mislead the court.


Mr. Collishaw, a man of high morals, credibility, respect, and who voiced Battaglia’s plight perfectly in his evidence, admitted at trial that research results on Elasticity were not yet complete, therefore there is no proof that Imperial was marketing elastic cigarettes at time of trial.





Collishaw Evidence   Book A

ANOTHER SMOKING GUN

Justice Thomson gave her oral  reasons for Judgment on June 5th, 2001.

Collishaw press released results of an elastic study on June 6th, 2001, contradicting evidence provided at trial by Brown and Massey.


During the eight months that passed between trial and Justice Reasons, the results of a Lab Stat. Research paper, on elasticity was completed and released.  Mr. Collishaw announced that 38% of the cigarettes sold by Imperial are elastic which account for 66% of all cigarettes sold.  Matinee Extra Mild is among the top 5 most elastic.  This is new evidence not available at trail, but is of such significance and importance, it should be accepted and recognized as a major smoking gun.  If accepted, perjury now enters the case.


     Press Release of Mr. Collishaw found in last pages of Factum


Battaglia had no chance of quitting in 1994.  Battaglia chose a cigarette brand that projected a health image with the perception of being a safer cigarette.  In reality, Battaglia chose a cigarette which was specifically designed to keep the smoker who wanted to quit from doing so.  Micro holes and now Elasticity were too much for Battaglia.


There is one conclusive and adamant answer from Mr. Massey (related to elasticity) in Book  D,  Page 111,   Line 30           -  “Definitely Not”


However, the answer   relates directly to the Structured Creativity Conference in 1984 not something else as he leads us to believe.





Book   D         Page  111           Lines  26-29


An opening statement was made by counsel for both parties.  Of interest was the opening position of Imperial Tobacco wherein they stated to her Justice what this case is not about.





   Book A         Page 7          Lines 13 & on


“This case is not about American Tobacco companies, it is not about American cigarettes”.

 Dr. Hammer, an Imperial expert witness on substance abuse, is an American, who was paid $7,500 U.S. a day to come to Toronto and provide evidence favorable to the defendant.




Book E      Page 81     Lines 23 - 25


Pomposity best describes this witness who compares cigarette addiction to excessive eating of chocolate.  Who among us knows one person who is addicted to chocolate and unable to stop compared to the number of smokers we know, who are addicted, want to quit, but have been unable to do so?  Mr. Hammer even disputes the testimony of Dr. Graham (as fine a heart doctor there is in this country) as to the meaning of the word addiction as defined in the dictionary.





Book D       Page  86        Lines 23 & on


A complete review of the direct and cross of Dr. Hammer’s testimony will reveal a mercenary of whom the defendants should be ashamed to have presented and whose presence very clearly exposes the lack of a Canadian doctor willing to sell his soul in favor of a Canadian tobacco company.


On cross, Dr. Hammer was asked:

Q:
Do you treat many people for chocolate addiction?





Book E     Page 94     Lines 20 – 30 

A:
I treat any one of a number of patients who tell me they can’t stop eating chocolate.”

Q:
Do you have patients who eat chocolate 25 times a day seven days a week?

A:
Oh, yes.


In Book E,   Page 96,  Lines 17-20,   Dr. Hammer says:


“I really am not an expert and present no expertise on whether

 it makes the slightest bit of difference what kind of cigarette 

 someone is smoking”.


Mr. Hammer further states he doesn’t “treat people for cigarette smoking”.  I treat people for psychiatric problems.”  Is Imperial implying Battaglia is insane?  If not, why this witness?  Battaglia’s claims were  never addressed by Dr. Hammer.  





“Dr. Hammer is in need of his own service!”





Please read  Book E,   Pages 74 to 104

SO HIGH!  KNOWS SO LITTLE

Evidence of P. Crawford  (former C.E.O. of Imperial Tobacco 1985-95





      Book C       Page  75 – 122

Present employment:  Out-Counsel for Olser, Hoskin and Harcourt, the law firm representing Imperial Tobacco in this matter.

 Book C      Page 75         Line 8 - 30

Within this witness is held all of the information that Battaglia seeks to prove his tort.  For the first time ever, a Canadian Tobacco executive, of the highest order, will be required to answer questions under a court oath.  Mr. Crawford was the man in charge during the years Battaglia claims the deceit was either born, or near the middle of it.  The first question asked of Mr. Crawford related to a letter dated July 31, 1991, which was sent to his parent company B.A.T.  addressing the issue of producing a safe cigarette.  The letter was labeled “The Canadian Project”.  This letter was copied to every major player within Imperial Tobacco Limited.




Evidence     Book  C       pg. 78, 79       Line 14

This is a letter Mr. Crawford wrote!  These are his answers:




“I am not familiar with what you are referring to”. 

 Book C     Page  81      Line 26


The key word being “launch” Crawford did not deny he authorized it to continue, which as C.E.O. he would have.  Then a long diatribe to explain his position as C.E.O. of Imperial Tobacco during his tenure.  Mr. Crawford, early in cross, washed his hands of the Health issue and cigarettes.  

Book C       Page  82-83     Top to Line 8


Then later, took credit for his vigilance on pursuing it.


Mr. Crawfords letter goes on to say “Imperial Tobacco believes that the goal, this goal of making a safer cigarette is essential, if decline of cigarettes usage is to be halted”.




    
Book C         Page  83        2nd paragraph

Confronted with this passage, Mr. Crawford finally says.




      “Our board was very keen about this as was I”.





     Book C      Page  83       Line 23


Mr. Crawford on the very first question went from denial or knowledge of, to taking credit for the letters content.


Book C, page  84,  exhibits a rift between B.A.T. and Imperial on the road they should take regarding the marketing of a “safe cigarette”.  B.A.T. wanted a cigarette that projected an acceptable, safer image as opposed to Imperial who wanted to research a safe cigarette period.  Even this admission may be a smokescreen.

Not sure this is even true.





Book C      all of page 84 and page 85




     Book  C     Page 89    last line of first paragraph





“Nobody gives Mr. Crawford orders.”





Book C   Page  85     Lines 20 - 24



        “He wasn’t telling me anything.  He didn’t give me orders”.


WHO WAS PRIVY TO THE CANADIAN PROJECT?


B.A.T. knew!  (a 40% shareholder)  The other 60% of shareholders did not know!





Book C       Page 86    Lines 14 - 18


It is admitted that B.A.T.(in the  U.K.) had the ability to genetically alter the tobacco leaf in its propensity to form tar in the year 1991.  Which  result was not sent to, or requested by Imperial Tobacco (Canada). (Tar contains the carcinogens.)





Book C     Page 88      all of the page


It is of interest to note that the letter discussed on pg. 90 Book C from B.A.T.  to Mr. Crawford dated June 1991, exposes the marketing philosophy Imperial eventually took.  “The current group research program reflects the view that we believe we can anticipate the moves that regulatory authorities will ask the industry to make its products on a rolling five year time scale.”   





Book    C     Page  90       Lines 21 - 25


Mr. Crawford’s reaction to this letter was one of disappointment.





   Book C      Page  91       Lines 7 & 9


Once again we point out that Mr. Crawford has gone from denial of involvement in the “Canadian Project” to expressing, “We were quite disappointed when we got this letter”.  “I was crestfallen”  Book C,  page 93, first two lines,  indicating a very strong interest in something he originally said he knew nothing about, or is this more cover-up of the Canadian responsibility?


This information was never shared with Health Canada “Voluntary Code” not withstanding Book C, Page 93,  Lines 6 – 26.


During the tenure of senior executive Crawford, did not share or inform of advances (in hand), to make a safer cigarette to Health Canada or the Public Health community at large.



Book    C     Page 93-94      Lines  20 –30, and most of  Page 94


Finally, with regard to this letter, a most revealing passage is noted.


“A second practical objection is that attempting to develop a safe cigarette, you are by implication in danger of being interpreted as accepting that the current project is unsafe”.

IMPERIAL IS CAUGHT IN THEIR OWN WEB



Book  C      Page 94, last paragraph  &  Page 95, first paragraph


As early as the 1980’s, Mr. Crawford, Mr. Mercier and Imperial Tobacco became convinced that statistics were such that they certainly pointed to a health problem.





Book C    Page 95      Lines 11 - 13


On November 24, 1987, one of the many Imperial Presidents, Mr. Luis Mercier, appeared in Parliament and answered a question from Sheila Copps about cancer and cigarettes.


“It is not the position of the industry that tobacco causes any disease”





Book C    Page 96      Lines 12-15


In June of 2000, another President of Imperial, Mr. Bob Bexon, appeared before the Senate on the issue of Tobacco and Health.  Mr. Bexon said, “we would agree that cigarette smoking causes diseases in some people”.  Mr. Crawford agrees with this statement because it is now the new party line.



Book C    Page 98    Lines 24 - 30, & Page  99,  Lines 1 - 13

Mr. Crawford, the C.E.O. of everything, does not know what the warnings say on the front of the packages.





Book C     Page 97       Lines 16 - 17


The answer no!  Because Imperials position was “cigarettes do not cause diseases”.  The messages were created and placed by Health Canada.  It is Health Canada that appears to endorse the claim, not Imperials.  

Battaglia was one of the many believers of the 50 year tobacco party line of denial.  Imperial is now trying to say Battaglia was warned!  Yes by Health Canada, not by the manufacturer who maintained denial.  Imperial even had the audacity to use the Health Canada warnings in their defense when attempting to discredit Battaglia on Cross.  




Battaglia’s Cross     Book C     




           Book C    Page 99     Lines 16 - 23


As C.E.O.  Mr. Crawford (with the knowledge his product was killing its’ customers) instructed no one to do anything.   It seemed to him, “self-evident” that the public knew there was a health problem.  Even Mr. Crawford’s mother not unlike Battaglia’s father, thought there was “something wrong with it”.  That didn’t stop him from accepting pay cheques, and permitting the hierarchy’s status quo.  His apathy is no defense or excuse.  As a matter of fact, Imperial’s defense is  nothing more than excuses.



Book C     Page 98      Lines 3 - 19


As to Imperials legal position after the government bill was struck down in 1995, we turn to Book C, Page 100, the whole page.


Herein it is pointed out to Mr. Crawford that even though the law was expelled, this does not affect any obligation of a distributor at common law or under any act of Parliament or of a Provincial Legislature, to warn purchasers of tobacco products of the health effect of those products.





Tobacco Products Control Act of 1988

                     Book C    Page 99, last 4 lines,  &   Page 100   Lines 1 - 30


Mr. Crawford pleads ignorance as to the substance of the meaning of the tar and nicotine numbers.





Book C    Page 100     Lines 24-30


As C.E.O. he got memos continuously on these numbers, yet they meant nothing to him.





Book C   Page 101,  top to Line 1 - 21


Mr. Crawford said, if he was aware that consumers were confused with the information of the packages, he would have called someone at Health Canada.  “If they would have talked to him”.  But Health Canada had a habit of not talking to the people at Imperial.  “No idea why”.




Book C     pg. 101   Lines 17 - 30





     Pg 102    Lines 1 - 10

Mr. Crawford continues to speak from both sides of his mouth.  He doesn’t know!  He does know!, He does care!  Others are in his way!  Mr. Crawford is not a credible witness.  In fact, all of Imperials witnesses were not credible and very weak of character. 

‘THE CONSPIRACY”

The three tobacco manufacturers joined forces in their effort to combat legislation requiring plain packaging in 1994.  They called themselves The Canadian Tobacco Manufacturers Council.  They also invented the Voluntary Code.





Book C      Page 103     Lines 1 - 22


These three companies were once fierce competitors, no quarter given or received.  Now because of massive attacks on the three as a whole, they have joined forces.  If you have more than one (in this case three), you have the potential for a conspiracy.  Mr. Safer, lawyer for Rothmans, even went so far as to supply an affidavit of discredit about Battaglia, (an exhibit), despite the fact Battaglia had no claim against them in this case.  The presence of R.J.R. and Rothmans counsel at pre-trial meetings after they were dropped from Battaglia’s original suit always seemed unusual as to what and why they were there after they were excluded legally.  Obviously they are now allies, in a  potential conspiratorial role, not to be trusted.


There appears to be a concern by Imperial that the warnings on the packages not be attributed to an Imperial warning, but to that of a Health Canada warning.  In other 

words, the warnings could go in but Imperial was not endorsing the message.  To do so would admit to Battaglia’s style of claim.





Book C     Page 107     Lines 15 - 18


Thereafter, Imperial’s counsel became a witness and provided evidence.





Book C     Page 107     Line 15 - 28


Mr. Crawford’s memory or answers to simple relevant questions is astonishingly poor considering the power and smarts required to hold the position of C.E.O.

On pages 109, 110 and 111, his answers are:


“It could be or it could not be”.


“Ah, I don’t know whether I have or not”.


“I can’t honestly say whether I have or have not, or did or did not”.


“That’s what it appears to be saying here”.


“What would you like me to say?”


“I don’t disagree with the statement”.


“I think they do—did”.


“I can’t be sure but I would suspect I have”.


“Right.  I assume that to be right.”


“Okay, I’ll accept that”.


“That’s what it appears to be saying here”.


These three pages involves a letter dated May 12, 1988.  The important passage:  “With one exception the individuals whom we met believe that smoking causes lung cancer”.


To this Crawford says:


“I can’t honestly say whether I have or have not, or did or did not”.


This answer to whether Crawford had seen a letter with that passage in it.





Book C     Page 109      Lines 11 - 18


Mr. Crawford agrees that it was advantageous for consumers to perceive Matinee as lower in strength than  other brands and agrees that consumers perceive Matinee to be safer.  More correctly, his answer is “Probably”.



Book C      Page 111      Lines 24-30, first word on page 112.





Book C      Page112       All of the page


Book C, page 112, the entire page exhibits an interesting exchange of Questions and Answers which further explains Battaglia’s foundation for this action.


Mr. Bob Bexon is the President of Imperial at time of this trial.  Mr. Bexon attended a structured Creativity Conference in 1984, in London England, wherein he wrote a paper.





Book C     Page 113      Lines 22 - 30


The paper expressed an opinion that more than half (54%) believed they can safely smoke.  Mr. Crawford did nothing to correct that misperception.





Book C        Page 115,   first line

ADDICTION


Mr. Crawford was asked if he agreed that for some of his consumers,” they were addicted”?  

Answer:    “I don’t know what “addiction” is.  certainly for some of”.   Then he asks for   the question to be repeated.


Mr. Crawford adds, “I don’t know what ‘addiction’ is”, (the party line going in to trial)    “I am not an addiction expert”.


It is respectfully suggested that a close analyzation of Book C,  Page 115,  Line 18 to 30 be reviewed.


The stuttering and stammering about the question on addiction by Mr. Crawford indicates the fear Imperial has about their product being labeled addictive.  There is no doubt in Crawford’s mind because he says, “Certainly for some”  Book C , pg. 115, Line 20 and 21.  Then the back tracking begins.  He says “that’s an expert’s role, that’s not mine”.  The expert Imperial presented was paid at least $7,500 U.S. per day, who was an American and believed nicotine and chocolate dependency are equal.  My, on my, oh my!





Book C    Page 118     Lines 25 – 27


Crawford admits he instructed no one to licence available safer cigarette technologies found in other countries.  Crawford didn’t care.   From Nicolas Brooks, an official of Brown and Williamson (a wholly owned subsidiary of B.A.T.) is the following quote:





Book C     Page 119       Lines 1 – 24


“I do have regrets.  I have sincere regrets that many of the things we are now embarked on doing could have been done sooner”.  The extent any of these things either change your decision not to quit or would have allowed you to quit smoking sooner, or not to have taken up smoking in the first place, then I sincerely apologize to you”. 


Mr. Crawford was asked if he wished to apologize to Mr. Battaglia.  Mr. Crawford said:   “No!  I don’t want to apologize to your client”.





Book C     Page 119      Lines 20 - 23


Mr. Crawford was briefly crossed on one issue only.  That was, to explain why sharing certain information with their shareholders was not done, as asked by Mr. Lennox, (plaintiff’s Counsel).  The question of relevance to this case should have been phrased as……


“Why did you not inform your customers of what you believed to be a product (with continued use)  harmful to their health?”




Book C      Page 121    Line 15 to Page 122, Lines 1 - 8

To that question we know the answer:

`
“It seemed to me self-evident that the public knew there was a health problem”.

Now Imperial says everyone knew smoking was dangerous to their health.  That has never been admitted by any tobacco executive, anywhere, anytime, before this trial.

Book C     Page 98        Lines 5 - 7

EVIDENCE OF DON BROWN


Former President, C.E.O. and C.O.O. of Imperial Tobacco Limited from 1993 to August 2000.  Also held the position of V.P. marketing 1987.




Book C     Page 123     Lines 14 - 30





     Page  124     Lines  1 -15


Mr. Brown was there in the l960’s when health and cigarettes first became an issue.





  Book C     Pages 126 & 127


Eventually, a common method was adopted to measure tar and nicotine which method was promoted by Imperial.  Later to be called the I.S.O. Smoking Machine.  The measurements were done by the manufacturer or its agents and submitted to Health Canada.  Thereafter printed on the package along with warnings, and undersigned by Health Canada.





Book C     Page 128      Lines 1 - 17


The Minister of Health in the late 1960’s suggested publicly that choosing a lower tar and nicotine brand was one way of reducing the risks associated with smoking.





Book C      Page 129     Lines 14 – 17


The Minister of Health in the late 1960’s suggested publicly, that choosing a lower tar and nicotine brand was one way of reducing the risks associated with smoking.

“DEAD MAN TALKING”

Mr. Paul Parry, once Marketing Director (in the 1960’s & 70’s) appears to be the only dissenting voice expressing the opinion that low tar and nicotine cigarettes may not be safer, and said as much to Health Canada.   To which Health Canada (Imperial alleges) paid no mind.


      


 Book  C       Page 129       Lines 21 - 23





         Page 130        Lines  5 - 11


Why the need to bring this up?  Especially since the only  dissenter (Paul Parry) is deceased and died of a smoking related disease.   Imperial is using a dead comrade to provide credibility to their cause.  Imperial has no shame!

SMOKESCREEN


In the late 1960’s the government requested a maximum tar yield be put on Canadian cigarette packages.  This attacked the health effect of cigarette smoke, (that being tar),  but did nothing to reduce the cause – nicotine.  As well, Imperial knew that a tar yield of around 12 would produce a nicotine of 1.2 (10%), just enough to satisfy a normal human’s need for nicotine.


Eventually Imperial persuaded the government to set a reasonable tar maximum using the excuse Canadian smokers would switch to American cigarettes.  Our common life experience tells us that this would not have happened any more than a bourbon drinker would switch to scotch whiskey.  No way should that have been bought.  Canadian cigarettes contain a Virginia grade of reconstituted tobacco.  American cigarettes contain Burley and Turkish tobacco.  Hugely different.





Book C      Page 134     Line 7

“CANADIAN TOBACCO MANUFACTURERS COUNCIL”


The C.T.M.C. funded the “Voluntary Code”.


This counsel is a sham that grew in importance.  From the 1960’s it relieved pressure on government staved off legislation and became a very useful tool in disguising Imperial’s secretive manipulation of nicotine.  


Sadly, so successful was the C.T.M.C. and Voluntary Code, it caused the Health Minister to compliment the manufacturers for their efforts to reduce tar and nicotine.





Book C      Page 136      Lines  23 - 25





Book C      Page 136      Lines 13 - 20


What would that Health Minister say today if he knew that code was a purposeful distraction designed to keep his eyes off the ball?   Designed to deceive,  provide false information, and then leave the smoker to figure out everything else on their own, knowing full well some of their customers would die prematurely from the effects of their product design.

ROCK COVERS BUTT!


Apparently, the Health Minister on June 5, 2002, believed Battaglia had a case.  During the week leading up to Justice Thomson’s Judgment, the Federal Government ran full page ads in the Toronto area (possibly throughout Canada), warning the Tobacco Industry to get the descriptive words, (mild, extra mild, ultra mild, light, extra light, ultra light, etc.) off their cigarette packages, or he will bring in legislation forcing them to do so.


This ad also appeared the day after Justice Thomson’s Judgment.  Since then, not a word. 

THE NUMBERS DID THE TALKING

As to whether Imperial ever used advertising to claim health benefits if a smoker smoked certain cigarettes, their answer was “We have not”.





Book C    Page 142     Lines 3 - 5


At the insistence of the C.T.M.C. the numbers were incorporated into the Voluntary Code.  These numbers were printed on the package,  with the realization that consumers were paying attention to those numbers, and making choices based on those numbers in a marketplace where everyone is more health conscious is the only advertising needed.  Imperial had control of the game and its rules.  They knew how to and did manufacture and sell cigarettes which were purposely mislabeled as to their contents and meaning.

AVERAGE  


Over and over Mr. Brown and others use the word ‘average’ to explain the meaning of the tar and nicotine readings.  This is incorrect.  The numbers on the package are the lowest possible of a range of six times that number .  As is the case with Matinee Extra Mild and 100 Slims.


There is no explanation of any kind, on the package to inform smokers the number  is or is not an average.  The consumer has been mislead, as has this court.





Book C         Page 138        Lines  19 & 20

“WE HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING”

The consumer received no informative health saving explanation as to the numbers meaning, or how a smoker should smoke a light cigarette.  They were led to believe.   Mr. Brown says, “WE HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING THAT CONSUMERS ACCEPTED THAT LOWER TAR AND NICOTINE CIGARETTES WERE LESS HAZARDOUS”.





Book C          Page 160         Lines  5 - 7

Mr. Brown is right!  Battaglia did have an understanding that lower tar and nicotine cigarettes were less hazardous.  That is the foundation of Battaglia’s claim. It is what Imperial did or didn’t do to conceive or correct this false public perception.  Rather than take the road of a good citizen, Imperial chose to hire scientists to engineer cigarettes that effectively became ‘nicotine delivery devices’.  Tobacco and its quality  was no longer part of the recipe.  Imperial let the numbers do the talking.  


Further to this, on re-direct of Mr. Brown, Book C pgs. 144 beginning with  lines 9 thru to page 150 to lines 18.  Herein, Imperial admits to the deceit, and how it came about.  The explanation as to Imperial’s actions in 1989 regarding the reporting of tar and nicotine numbers seems to have been entered in evidence to show how Imperial behaved so properly and wonderfully, and were just following orders.  In reality, they have inadvertently exposed the year and time the nicotine deceit was born.


The 1989 Legislation was designed to replace the industry’s voluntary code, in particular where it relates to the method of reporting tar and nicotine numbers on the packages.   Even though the legislation allowed the defendant to continue with the ridiculous ISO method, rather than the intensive smoking method (covering the holes), Imperial still challenged this part of the act.  Why?  Because a clause within the original act required Imperial to place the health warnings on their packages at factory level over the name of Imperial Tobacco.  If this part was successful, Imperial would be admitting guilt as to the hazards of their product.  As a result, this provision of the act was struck down in 1995 by the Supreme Court of Canada.





Book C   Page 149     Lines 13 - 30


But wait!  On page 150, there appears to be a correction of previous evidence.   Imperial’s successful challenge of the clause which related to Imperial Tobacco  endorsing the ‘health warnings’ inadvertently knocked out the requirement to provide the tar and nicotine numbers  printed on the pack. 


At this point, Imperial shows its true colors and opens itself up to liability and the success of this appeal.  There is no doubt that Imperial knew the numbers and the ISO method of measuring these numbers was their number one marketing tool.  The only way to communicate to the consumer which cigarettes may be perceived to be safer is through the numbers.  The lower the number, the better.  The ISO method allowed for this.  But the clause had been struck down. 





Book C     Page 150     Lines 10 & 11

Q.        “and so you continued to leave the numbers on the package andthe methodology

            continued to be the same”.     

A.
“Correct”

Book C     Page 150      Lines 12, 13, 14

Q.         ‘Did you evidence that decision in writing?

A.       ‘Yes, it was in a – yet another CTMC Voluntary Code’

Book C    Page 150       Lines 15 - 19.


So at this point in 1995, Imperial admits to being responsible for the numbers still appearing on the packages despite no legislation requiring same.  Even though Imperial knew those numbers were grossly misleading and would give cause for a smoker to continue smoking.   Without the deceit of the numbers and their perceptive meaning a smoker might otherwise have quit.  Added to this  is the knowledge Imperial had in 1989 from the Toronto Star article which claimed.


“so-called light or ultra light with the vented filters maybe getting 10 to 15 times the dosages the packages list”.





Book C   Page 146     Lines 19 - 21


Mr. Brown is not surprised that if you blocked the vent holes, the tar and nicotine readings would increase.





Book C    Page 148     Lines 15 - 20


Mr. Brown also knows Imperial has placed the vent holes (at 12mm) exactly where the smokers lips contact the filter, effectively creating the intensive smoking result. 


Mr. Brown was asked if a competitive product with vent holes would produce the same difference between the ISO method and intense method as with Matinee Extra Mild.





Book C     Page 154      Lines 24 - 27


Imperial seems to be saying that their competitors are doing the same thing as they are.  Therefore no one is guilty if everybody is doing it.  But was everybody doing it like Imperial was doing it and for as long?


The record shows no others were even close to duplicating Imperials deceitful methods, that is until recently.  Since 1999 almost all cigarettes of a light nature have been cloned to duplicate the Matinee Extra Mild effect.  There is little doubt that Imperial was decades ahead of its competitors in the area of how best to manipulate the nicotine and confuse the health image of cigarettes.  (It explains why Imperial’s share of the market since the 1990’s has reached 70%, up from 40% in the 1970’s.   Mr. Brown “can’t imagine somebody smoking cigarettes in that manner all the time”.  That being the intense method.





Book C    Page 155    Lines 8, 9, 10

Why so difficult to imagine?  Non vented cigarettes are smoked exactly in that manner.  Many of them are Imperials own products.   From this point on, Mr. Brown begins to take us into the area of compensation and elasticity and once again Mr. Brown purposely clouds the issue with trick words or phrases.


Up to this moment in the trial, there has been no hesitation by Mr. Brown when providing his evidence.  Obviously Mr. Brown was briefed on the questions he was to be asked by Mr. Barnes.  However the first break in their flow begins with the question: “has Imperial ever designed a commercial product that would facilitate compensation by the smoker?”





Book C      Page 155      Lines 20 - 22

Why the need for Mr. Brown to answer as follows:

A
 No.  I mean, unknowingly, do you mean or…..

Q.
Unknowingly

A.
“No, not unknowingly”

Defendants counsel had forgotten to add the word “unknowingly” in his question to Brown.  Brown needed to remind him.  Defendants counsel obviously had a hard time being involved in this deceit.





Book C     Page 155    Lines 20 - 25

Definition of “unknowingly”    -    Did it!  Unknown to me.


           The Question and Answer in Book C   Page 155, lines 26-30,




All of page 156,  page 157  lines 1-10

All of this is double talk, the total opposite of the truth.  It culminates with

Q.
And, so you have intentionally set that specification to avoid the

possibility of vent blockage?    

 A.     That’s right.

BLINDED BY THE ‘LITE’

In answer to Mr. Barnes question as to what Imperial intended to convey when they use the words “mild and light”





Book C    Page 162    Lines 21-25

Mr. Brown gives this answer:

“Ah, when used with a trademark it is to reflect a product that is lower in tar and nicotine than the parent or the trademark that’s used.  We refer to it as the parent brand – the original brand.”

Who could have guessed that?





Book C    Page 162      Lines 23 - 25


Another relevant indisputable fact is that the U.K. requires the words light and extra light to have a certain level of tar and nicotine, it can’t just be as Imperial does. (‘light’ relative to a brand).  In other words Imperial could call a shotgun a pop gun and that would be unregulated authority.





Book K    D    Page 1    Lines 20 - 23

Madam Justice Thomson asked Mr. Brown “How do you know that’s how consumers think?”   Mr. Brown’s answer:  “We ask them your Honour.”




Book D     Page 3       Lines 15-18,   Lines 23 - 26





Book D    Page 3     Line 7

     “If its not smokeable, it doesn’t do anybody (Imperial), any good if they won’t buy it.”


       
          Mr. Brown Evidence    Book  D   Page 5   Lines 7 - 8


Another way of saying “until we create a safe cigarette that smokers will smoke, the status quo must be maintained.


An attempt was made by R. J. Reynolds to market a safe cigarette (Eclipse and Premier) but was met with derision  The product was labeled a “nicotine delivery device’.  This effort by R. J. Reynolds clearly exhibits what the industry  believes is the most important ingredient of cigarette smoke, that being “nicotine”.





Book D     Page 6      Line 29


For what purpose does Imperial raise the issue of Matinee holding only 2-1/2 % of the National Market (another misleading piece of evidence).  In the more sophisticated markets of Montreal, Toronto and Vancouver, the sales percent of these products is much much larger.  The record shows more than 4 times more.  Yet we are lead to believe that because not many smoke Matinee, there is only harm to a few smokers.  So why worry about them.





Book D     Page 8     Lines 23 – 28


Is this court willing to accept Imperial’s position regarding nicotine?  That nicotine addiction is comparable to uncontrollable eating of chocolates!



      STRUCTURED CREATIVITY CONFERENCE 1984





Book D    Page 9    Lines 5 - 30



           

      Page 10   Lines 1 to 30

This Conference was a free thinking, take the gloves off, no idea is too crazy meeting.  It was attended by Bob Bexon, (Bexon was President at time of this trial).  Imperial’s  products kill!  Terrorists  have meetings like this.


This is where and how the idea of micro holes, cheating smoking machines, and elasticity and compensation was born.

More on “Elasticity”
  -         Book D     page 10     lines 28-30




    
 Book D     all of page 11 and page 12




    
 Book D      page 13   lines 0-21


How credible is Mr. Brown and the truthfulness of the evidence he provided at trial?  Much about that and the fear Imperial has toward the meanings of the words “elasticity” and compensation is packaged within three pages of the trial transcript.


Remember, (at time of trial),  Mr. Collishaw had no proof with him to prove Imperial was marketing elastic cigarettes.  Knowing this, Mr. Brown felt comfortable in totally denying any connection to marketing elastic cigarettes in Canada.  He did admit to studying elasticity in 1993.  (Perhaps the year Imperial became aware that they had accidentally discovered elasticity).  They studied elasticity so says Mr. Brown, but only so we could understand “what consumers are expecting from cigarettes they buy”.





Book D      Page 12     Lines 4, 5, 6

Mr. Brown had been the President and CEO of Imperial up to August of 2001.  Mr. Brown is a young man; for what reason did he retire permitting the ascension of Bob Bexon just three months before commencement of this trial.  


Mr. Brown was the man in charge during the years of this tort, 1993 to 2001.  If this court were to find in Battaglia’s favour, then the limelight would shine directly on Mr. Brown.  Mr. Brown says “he is not aware of any other research that’s been done with respect to “elasticity” other than the one instance in 1993.





Book D      Page 12    Lines 17 - 19


Mr. Brown was there, in charge, he knew what was going on, he did nothing to change it.  He let his customers die without the knowledge of knowing what he knew.     Mr. Brown is well placed for legal prosecution.

  Mr. Brown in answer to whether approval has ever been sought and if so what would the answer be to marketing elastic cigarettes, emphatically states:  “the product would be rejected”.  No qualms about it!


Mr. Brown obviously believes, deep down, that what he authorized or allowed to happen under his watch was wrong, but must not admit it under any circumstance.

 WHY IS ELASTICITY SO UNSAVOURY AND DANGEROUS?

Elasticity is another way of saying in perpetuity.  “Forever”  No matter how low the nicotine number on the side of the package the smoker will compensate in such a manner that each smokers nicotine need is custom tailored to satisfy their own personal body needs.  


The transcript reveals 1.2 mg is the average human need.  Matinee Extra Mild has a range of .4 to 2.4 which covers all needs.  If Battaglia needed 1.2 he would smoke to the intensity of 1.2.  If another persons body required 2.4, he would smoke to the intensity of 2.4.


Imperial Tobacco is fortunate this law suit is in small claims court and not Criminal Court.  The evidence appears to be overwhelmingly in favour of a deliberate cover-up of the effects and measuring of “vent holes”, and the inadvertent magical effects of “elasticity”. 


Mr. Brown expects us to believe there is a way to smoke a cigarette without inhaling , but never reveals how this is done.





Book  D      Page 17     Line 11, 12, 13


In 1988 at a Parliamentary Hearing, Imperial had the opportunity to once again “suggest that the information concerning tar and nicotine yields on the package, should be improved in some way”.  Imperial suggested nothing.





Book D     Page 18     Line 5 – 8


It is admitted that there was no restriction on Imperials ability to put information inside the package.





Book D    Page 18      Line 27 – 30

Imperial has no defense as to why they didn’t inform smokers. (of Matinee Slims 100’s Extra Mild) that a 20% increase in its nicotine content had occurred.


As previously mentioned,  the reading printed on the side of the package was  .04.  During the tenure of this legal action, the readings were increased to  .05.


This was a major character change in Matinee 100’s Slims Extra Mild.  Yet, Imperial did nothing to warn Battaglia of the nicotine increase.  Imperial had the ability to do so.  Imperial knew a Slim 100’s smoker was concerned about his health, for no other reason would anyone buy them.





Book D    Page 19     Line 1-17


What person believes that the tar and nicotine numbers shown on the cigarette packages and in its ad were there as a warning, not advertising?




        Book D      Page 19     Lines 21 – 25


How could you see them as anything else but information from which Battaglia was to make a decision in his brand choice.  Battaglia and others like him did not see the numbers as a warning.  Originally the trial transcript revealed that Imperial did not use the tar and nicotine numbers in their ads.

At this point in the trial, Imperial is admitting the tar and nicotine numbers were inserted into the ads.  This was pre 1989 when the Industry’s Voluntary Code was in effect.  No legislation required this.

Book  D   Page 20    Lines 1 – 30

Mr. Brown in explaining how the Voluntary Code came about claims Health Canada was in “agreement and satisfactory to them”.

Book D      page  21     Lines 1 – 7

The key word in that explanation is the word “negotiations”.  Why the need to

 negotiate?  What did they get in exchange for what they gave?


Mr. Brown’s explanation as to why Imperial did not inform its customer about “smoker compensation” as done by Carlton cigarettes in the USA  should leave us all breathless.





Book D      Page 22      Lines   7 – 18


A review of Page 23, regarding the micro vent holes, and Mr. Brown’s evidence is an embarrassing, self-serving diatribe.  The only person who would place scotch tape over the holes would be a smoker of a stronger cigarette who borrowed a light cigarette from a light cigarette smoker.  No one would buy them just to then place scotch tape over the filter holes!  Mr. Brown admits that Imperial did nothing to create or alter the perception that Matinee Extra Mild is safer.





Book   D      Page 24       Lines  28 – 30



                
 
   Page 25       Line   2

‘OBJECTION’


A word not often heard from either side during the trial.  So when it was raised, it becomes more meaningful.   Imperial objected to the question asked of Mr. Brown by Mr. Lennox where it related to Imperial providing Health Canada with all of their knowledge on attitudes and behaviours related to light cigarettes between the years 1994 – 1999.





Book  D      Page 25      Lines 27 – 30

                        

Book D       Page 26       Lines  8  - 14


Mr. Barnes  cannot see the “relevance”






Book D     Line 16


Mr. Brown was President at this time which puts him (personally) in the centre of Battaglia’s claim of fraud and deceit.  Was Mr. Barnes legally protecting Mr. Brown pre-emptively






Book D     Line 20


If Imperial was to provide to Health Canada the information they have discovered through consumer research, it most certainly would have an effect on the success rate of smokers wanting to quit.  The more non-conflicting information received, the easier and better the decision would be. 


If the consumer were to realize the deceitful measures of Imperial Tobacco disclosed during this trial there is little doubt it would have a sobering and angry effect on them.   As it has with Battaglia.


The answer by Mr. Brown “I don’t think we have a choice”






Book D    Page 26     Line 31

This is not a complete answer and as of the writing of this appeal, Health Canada is none the wiser.


Justice Thomson shuts out the balance of this question.






   “He’s answered it”     

     Book D    Page  27   Line 8


Mr. Lennox expresses surprise and has obviously lost his train of thought because he answers:   “He answered it?  Alright, okay, well I’ll move on then.”  Lennox moved on and was not allowed to follow up his point on information to Health Canada.






Page 27   Line  9 & 10


If the amoral Voluntary Code had any teeth, this question of Mr. Brown would be redundant.  


Mr. Brown agrees that the tar and nicotine readings are incorrect.






Page 27    Line 10 – 22 


Mr. Brown agrees that a smoker of a 4 mill tar cigarette compensates more than a smoker of a 15 mill tar cigarette.






Page 27    Lines 23 - 28


Health Canada considered R.J. Reynolds Eclipse Cigarettes to be a “medical device”






Page 29    Lines 2 & 3


Imperial recognizes the importance of nicotine to its bottom line.  A safe cigarette to the tobacco industry is a “nicotine or medical delivery system.  No more proof is needed.  It is admitted.  How can it be anything but?


After the structured creativity conference in 1984 which was attended by existing President Bob Bexon, a Smoking Behaviour Conference was held in July of 1984 in Montreal Quebec.  Mr. Brown when asked agreed that “the smoker, (of light cigarettes) adjusted his smoking habits to duplicate his normal cigarette nicotine intake”.





Book D      Page 30     Lines 5 – 27


Battaglia did not know that!  Nor do the 1-1/2 million existing smokers of which at least 80% wished they didn’t.  Had Battaglia known, he would not have switched to light cigarettes and may well have initiated a different plan in 1994.  The year he switched to Matinee Extra Mild.  In reality, Battaglia switched to a more dangerous 

cigarette.  Imperial knew this.  They told Battaglia nothing.  They even have the audacity to increase the nicotine content of Matinee 100’s Slims, during the exact time Battaglia had chosen Matinee 100’s Slims as a start to a quitting formula.    


It became much more.  Mr. Brown admits to conducting research on smoker compensation.





Book D    Page 31      Lines 28 – 30


Previously, Mr. Brown denied “unknowingly” ever designing a cigarette that would facilitate “compensation” by the smoker.





Book C   Pages  155 – 156     Lines 1 - 30 


“To design a product to do otherwise, I think, would be a wrong thing to do and would certainly put the trademark at great risk.”



Book C    Pages 155 & 156     Lines 20 and lines 1,2,3

It is becoming clearer, as more of the puzzle is pieced together, that Imperial was aware of the smoker compensation phenomena, studied it, understood it, accidentally found it, and accidentally or “unknowingly” manufactured it.  It came about as a result of the micro vent holes.  One thing led to another.  Vent holes, to compensation, to elasticity.   

What chance did Battaglia have of quitting when the plan by Imperial to keep him smoking was three times more effective than Imperial originally planned?   Who did they tell? -   “No one”.

PLANTIFF’S WITNESS – MR. ALBERT LISTON






Book D     Page 36


Much is said about this man within his job description.  Mr. Liston was a senior employee of Health Canada and boss of Mr. Collishaw when both were there in the late 1980’s early1990’s.  Mr. Liston now gives regulatory advice to a variety of industries.  The drug industry, the food industry, medical device industry, radiation emittency devices industry and, to the tobacco industry.


Food,  Drugs,  Medical Devices and Radiation.  Where is the tobacco expert?

Imperial had access to at least 400 scientists, one of which testified in this case.  Not one person with tobacco expertise was presented.  A drug company would not have a tobacco expert on staff!  So why does a tobacco company have druggists on staff?  

Mr. Liston was Assistant Deputy Minister of the Health Protection Branch.  That means Mr. Liston was responsible for protecting the Canadian Public from harmful effects of specific products.  Cigarettes was very much a part of that mandate.  


In light of all that is now known about the health negatives linked to cigarette smoke, what is Mr. Liston doing here?  Why is he a witness for the defendant Imperial?  $1,600 a day times four.  $6,400  is the answer!





Book D       Page 63       Line 19


Mr Liston is not a credible witness!  Mr. Liston must not know what he is doing or how hurtful his aid to Imperial could be.


The transcript reveals Imperial used Mr. Liston as a means to blame everything about the numbers on the Government and the false importance of the Voluntary Code. 




Book D     Pages 39, last paragraph and thru pages 51

The Tobacco’s Industry’s answer to producing a safe cigarette was to create a vehicle for transmitting nicotine.  A “medical device”





Book D  Page 51    Lines 10 – 25

Mr. Liston uses the word “precise” to describe the information supplied to Canadian smokers.




        Book D   Page 52   Paragraph 22 – 27

The information was as precise as the numbers on the package were average.   Both words are a gross misrepresentation of the facts.  Deliberately so!  Mr. Lennox neatly capsulizes Liston’s evidence when he asks:  “So, is it your position that if a numbering system is incorrect that it’s important to continue with it for the purposes of consistency?”





Book D      Page 54     Lines 7 – 9

“HOLES! WHAT HOLES?

Mr. Liston, a major player with Health Canada, during the important 1980’s, the boss of Colishaw, the one in charge of the method to measure and report the tar and nicotine

readings, from which consumers were expected to make a life and death decision:-

“DOES NOT KNOW WHERE THE HOLES ARE IN MATINEE EXTRA MILD”!





Book D    Page 56     Lines 13 – 16

That tells us how successfully Imperial’s deceitful marketing tricks have worked.  Either that or Mr. Liston is lying.  Either one is just as bad.  Mr. Liston is also under the impression that a cigarette in order to be called a cigarette only need “resemble” a cigarette in its traditional sense.

.

EVIDENCE OF STEWARD ROBERT MASSEY





Book  D      Page 64  to  Page  129

Employed with B.A.T.(Parent of Imperial)  U.K. from 1971 to 1982.

Employed with Imperial Canada from 1982 to 2000.

Position:   Director of Scientific Affairs  and Director of Research and Development.

Like Mr. Wigand in responsibility but not a whistle blower to be sure.

Mr. Massey reveals his position on the importance of consumer acceptance to a product with reduced delivery as when he says “There’s little point to reducing deliveries if people are not going to accept the product and to smoke the product”.




Book D      Page 76      Lines 11 – 13

“There is no benefit if people don’t smoke it, if people don’t buy it and smoke it and they smoke other products.  There is not going to be any health benefit.   Say What?




Book D      Page 76       lines 19 – 21

These two statements help us visualize Imperial’s moralistic dilemma.  Manufacture cigarettes that won’t kill but won’t sell or manufacture cigarettes that are perceived to not kill but will sell, but also kill.  Imperial chose deception by perception in 1978.  To the detriment of almost 4000 Matinee smokers who have died since that decision was made.



45,000 x 24 years = 1 million deaths  x 3.1/2%  =  3,780


One of the most startling evidential differences between Battaglia and Imperial is their respective positions on the issue of vents, micro holes, the engineering and design of same and their purpose.


Battaglia says the holes positioning are purposely placed to allow for maximum mouth and or finger blocking and to cheat the I.S.O. smoking machine.  





Book D      Page 94     Lines 9 – 11


Imperial admits to researching the actual depth to which smokers suck on their cigarette.





Book D      Page 95       Lines 2 – 6

It appears that damage control was the order of the day.  All of the testimony by Mr. Massey in Book D on pages 95 thru to page 105 is in contradiction of evidence provided by the defendant Imperial, at this trial on previous days.





Book D     Page   95  - 105   all lines

Of one point there can be no argument.  The vent holes are definitely placed to deceive the I.S.O. machine and  produce false and misleading tar and nicotine numbers.  


Mr. Massey tells us what the purpose of ventilation is.





Book D      Page 105     Lines 22 – 26 


Ventilation as a word sounds healthy.  It is not healthy!  Imperial, with for-thought, and the knowledge that their cigarettes could also kill their customers, hide under the umbrella of the now disgusting Voluntary Code.   A code that is designed and manipulated by the defendant. ( Imperial has held back life saving information for at least 20 years.

Mr. Massey is asking us to believe that there is a difference between puffing and inhalation.  “It’s O.K. to puff but don’t inhale”.  How do you do that?  We are to buy their cigarettes, puff on them, but not inhale?





Book D     Page 106     Lines 28 & 29

This is double talk by Mr. Massey to Madame Justice Thomson.

WHAT IS IMPERIAL MOST AFRAID OF?


To get a handle on what Imperial is most worried about in regard to disproving Battaglia’s claim can be found after the recess on the second last day of the trial and after a three day weekend.  The exchange between Massey and Barnes is revealing and educational.  Within the pages in Book D    pages 109  lines 20 to page 111 lines 0-30 is either the truth or the deceit.

     
Where in the transcript can we find one sensible meaningful defense to Battaglia’s charges. There are none!  Not one!  Just excuses.

    
 How relevant is the press release by Mr. Collishaw the day after Justice Thomson’s (reasons for judgment) to Imperials denial that they studied elasticity but did not market elastic cigarettes.  

 On that issue, Mr. Massey says  “Well there aren’t any documents to see on that issue”.





Book D     Page 117      Lines 14 – 19

    
 There wasn’t then but there sure is now.  Imperial continues its a pattern of admission that began in the 1950’s, deny, deny, until denial is proven otherwise.

     
On the morning of Monday, November 27th, we have a chance to discover what concerns Imperial most about the trial to date.  Imperial had the weekend to critique their efforts and improve the parts of their defense that is in need of bolstering.  It’s not a stretch that Imperial would have had Mr. Massey spend time over the weekend with Mr. Barnes going over Monday, November 27th testimony.  With three days to prepare, what would they concentrate on.  What is Imperial most worried about?





 Book E    Monday,  Nov. 27th, 2000





   “Hole Blocking” and “Elasticity”

Hole blocking and its deceitful use is the foundation on which Battaglia built this claim.  None of what is asked and answered on this day is relevant to the defense of Battaglia allegations.






Book E     Pages 1 – 9 

A consensus of these pages reveals self-serving blame of others for not creating a safe cigarette.  They use their competitor’s failure and the ridicule of same to exonerate themselves.  Most revealing is that each effort to create a safe cigarette involved the use of nicotine as the major ingredient.   Without nicotine there would be no cigarette market as we know it.    Cigarettes should be governed by the Food and Drug Administration.

B.C.  WEBSITE DISAPPEARANCE


The B.C. government was the first to require the high and low tar and nicotine numbers be printed on the pack.  Battaglia found the web site which displayed the chart showing Matinee products compared to others.  Matinee Extra Mild King Size had a reading of over a 650% increase to the number on the pack.  This chart is part of Battaglia’s exhibits and is the most revealing evidence of all. 


Imperial must agree because some time during the year 2000, Battaglia searched but was unable to find that chart ever again and wondered where it went.  Since then it has been revealed in this trial, that Imperial renegotiated its position and had the web site eliminate any cigarette with sales less than 1.25% market share in the B.C. market   This is another smoking gun.  Matinee Extra Mild 100’s Slims also fits the criteria. 





Book  A     Page 57      Lines 14 - 26 


Battaglia got lucky when he originally came across this web site and copied the info before Imperial could get the chart off the B.C. web site.


One can only guess why Imperial even  raised this issue  (B.C. website) at trial.  It has given Battaglia another opportunity to discredit them.  

REPORT AT BACK OF FACTUM.





 Book E     Page 8     Lines 19 - 25 

PERJURY

Having knowledge that Battaglia was without proof at trial to show test results verifying Imperial manufactured and marketed Elastic cigarettes, Mr. Massey as did Mr. Brown, had sufficient confidence to deny, once again, that Imperial’s products are not elastic.


Mr. Massey agrees that there is a test available to demonstrate if their products are elastic.





Book  E     Page 10     Lines 21 – 26


Imperial agrees that there are labs in Canada equipped to do smoke analysis that lab being “Labstat”.





Book  E     Page 10     Lines 27 – 30




                    Page 11     Lines  1  -  5


Again, on page 11 lines 6 and 7, Mr. Massey in answer to the question, “Have you never (sic) marketed an elastic product?”, says “That’s correct.”

FACTS NOT KNOWN DURING TRIAL


As previously mentioned between the end of this trial and Judge’s Reasons for Judgment (June 5th, 2001), Mr. Collishaw ordered elasticity tests on all cigarettes manufactured in Canada.  The tests were conducted by Labstat  in Kitchener, Ontario, just as Mr. Massey suggested.





Book  E     Page 117     Lines 14 – 19





Book  E     Page  10      Lines 27 – 30





Book  E     Page  11      Lines  1  -  5


Imperial through Mr. Massey, was committing perjury when he denied being the producer of elastic cigarettes.  Mr. Massey is Imperial’s top chemist.


Mr. Massey threw Elasticity right back in Battaglia’s face.  Battaglia has responded.

NEIL COLLISHAW, EX. IN CHIEF BY MR. LENNOX

Book  E     Page 105     Lines 15 on


Mr. Collishaw is so painfully honest as were all of Battaglia’s witnesses.  There is no doubt who presented the more credible witnesses.  The integrity and quality of their evidence is unquestionable.  Not so with the evidence of the Defendant Imperial.  The most damaging to Battaglia claim was Collishaw’s acceptance of Imperial’s evidence where they deny marketing Elastic cigarettes only researching elasticity.



Book  E     Page 106     Lines 21 – page 107  Lines 1 – 12





Book  E     Page 110     Lines  3 – 6


Justice Thomson placed a lot of weight on this denial in her Reasons for Judgment.  If she knew now what we know and understand now, Justice Thomson decision would have been different.


Even though there may be legal arguments, the following is mentioned only as a means to understand what motivated Justice Thomson to rule against Battaglia.  On page 21, (Book J.R.), a significant word is not in the transcript, but can be found in the audio tape.  The word was edited out.  


The paragraph on this page begins with Justice Thomson’s assessment of Battaglia’s allegations and smoking history.  Line number 21,  “He went back as many times as he stopped because he is still smoking.  Right  (the missing word is ‘right’).  Justice Thomson, while quoting this line looked down at Battaglia and addressed him personally asking to his face – “Right?”  Battaglia responded to her with a sheepish nod, mouthing the answer, “yes”.


Battaglia’s answer to Justice Thomson’s question was the end of any empathy she may have had for Battaglia.  Justice Thomson’s attitude toward Battaglia went down hill from there.  If  this is not true, then why has the word been edited?

  This factum has reached the point of absurdity.  It seems that every time I turn a page of the trial transcript, there is a statement by Imperial which can easily be discredited.  This factum could go on for at least double what is written.  I feel it incumbent on me to dispute every piece of evidence Imperial has presented in its defense.  


There are C.D. Roms to review, documents and charts to review, all of which is vital to the proof of Battaglia’s claim.  It is hoped that these documents will be studied by the appointed appeal Judge.  There being no need now to write it down in this factum.  For example, what could Battaglia do with the evidence in Book E, page 108 to the end.  Imperial should consider themselves ‘lucky’ to be facing a judgment of such menial financial loss rather than Criminal charges where the executives who perpetrated this fraud of deception would be losing their freedom.


I have done all I can or am able.  The decision to overturn Justice Thomson’s Judgment now rests in the hands of others who can analyze the contents of the evidence more clearly than I have.  


The totality of the circumstantial and direct evidence strongly supports a reversal of this Judgment.  If there is to be a further appeal, it should come at the expense of the defendant Imperial.  

BATTAGLIA HAS PROVEN HE IS NO ‘SHILL’  for special interest groups, as Imperial labels him in:





Book A     Page 8     Lines 1 & 2


Battaglia does not desire a re-trial.  Battaglia has already invested more in expenses on this matter than what he may be entitled to if he is victorious.  If the proof of Battaglia’s claim does not rest within the pages of these transcripts then there will never be enough.

UNSUSPECTING PUBLIC

I am alleging and have proved that Imperial, with full malice aforethought, purposely designed, manufactured and marketed their (Matinee King Size, Extra Mild, and Matinee Slim 100’s, Extra Mild) to specifically target (smokers) who wanted to quit.  Battaglia being part of an unsuspecting public.


Imperial knew their industry was in trouble.  The image of cigarettes has become unfashionable and almost all of their customers wished they were not.


In reply and hidden under the cloak of the pre-emptive, industry controlled,” Voluntary Code” and the Canadian Tobacco Manufacturers Council, Imperial dealt the cards.  Battaglia and thousands of others bought in!  At one time the tobacco industry represented his family, being once an employee of a cigarette company.  He was a defender of the industry and promoter of Matinee Extra Mild as a safe cigarette that had taste.


It is very likely that Battaglia would have made a different choice and method of quitting in 1994, if he knew what he has learned since this trial.  As verification of this likelihood, Battaglia has not purchased a pack of cigarettes for himself since June 3, 2002 because of the information this trial has given him.


Battaglia is entitled to the re-imbursement of the money he spent buying the two Matinee products since 1994 and costs of this case.  Further, this appeal court may well decide that since Battaglia has been deceived right from the gun, his health must have deteriorated.  Perhaps an unknown or immeasurable amount, but definitely death was always a possibility.

NEW CANCER


Since the marketing of vented cigarettes, a new cancer has been diagnosed.  “Adenocarinoma of the Lung”.





Book A     Page 8     Lines 1 & 2


As to Battaglia’s heart problems and its effect on this claim: - regrettably, his heart problem seems to have clouded his claim.  Originally, no mention of a heart or health problem was cited in the original claim, only the probability that Imperial’s deceitful practices have placed Battaglia in the precarious position of contracting a smoking related disease.  Which in this case happened to be heart disease.   After that happened, the diagnosis of a heart attack was added to Battaglia’s claim (as injury) and to show what Battaglia was trying to avoid in 1994.


Battaglia wishes to take his health injuries out of this claim.  In deciding who is at fault for what, forget that Battaglia has any disease at all.  Judge Imperial on its actions and what effect that may well have on Battaglia’s health from 1994 onward.

HARD CORE SMOKERS


Millions of Canadians have quit smoking in the past 25 years, but there are still millions who have tried but failed.  Most of those have tried to quit at least 6 to 7 times (like Battaglia) over their lifetime.  No matter how mentally resolved they have been, there has been little success. 


These smokers are obviously the hard core smokers, the most susceptible to addiction.  Genetically speaking, it is beyond their will.  If they were to learn of the devious tactics Imperial has used to keep them smoking, perhaps they will respond as Battaglia has.  It is Battaglia’s plan to assist these smokers at some point in the future provided there is a need for same.


As to the law and what law has been broken, Battaglia hopes there is already one on the books.  If not, then this appeal allows for new law.


At this point in time, no country has ever been this close to proving the Tobacco Industry’s involvement and how purposeful, uncaring, calculating and hurtful that effort has been.   This claim makes no health claim.  All others to this point have been based on a health injury of some kind.  This claim is based on criminal activity.


As of this writing, almost five years have lapsed since commencement of this claim and eight years since Battaglia made the decision to quit.  It is likely that at least another year will pass before the result of this appeal is known.


No other claim has come this close to a binding legal decision where it relates to the tobacco industry and the deliberate deceitful marketing techniques Imperial has used to keep smokers from quitting.  If this case leaves the system and Justice Thomson’s Judgment is up held, then it will take at least another five to eight years before anyone gets this close to exposing the tobacco  industry’s well conceived clandestine methods.  Another decade of Imperial getting away with ‘murder’.


Never before has any Canadian or World Court been this close.  The ‘Nuremberg’ defense should not prevail now any more than it did then.  Madame Justice Thomson began her reasons with the comment:




“A SAFE CIGARETTE IS AN OXYMORON”

Battaglia ends this factum with the comment:




“IMPERIAL TOBACCO IS AN OXYMORON”

I N D E X 
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